ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 22, 2016
3:19 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes, Vice Chair
Representative Ji m Col ver

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representative Cathy Tilton

Represent ati ve Andy Josephson
Representative Sam Kito

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representative M ke Chenault (alternate)
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 304

"An Act requiring the electronic submssion of a tax return or
report with the Departnent of Revenue; relating to the taxes on
cigarettes and tobacco products; taxing electronic snoking
products; adding a definition of 'electronic snoking product';
and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 304

SHORT TI TLE: ELECTRNC TAX RETURNS; TOBACCO & E-Cl GS TAX
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

02/ 08/ 16 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 08/ 16 (H) L&C, FIN

02/ 19/ 16 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 19/ 16 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 19/ 16 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 22/ 16 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

MARGE STONEKI NG, Executive Director
American Lung Association in Al aska

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- February 22, 2016



Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 304.

ALEX MCDONALD, Owner

| ce Fog Vapor, Inc.; Menber

Snoke-Free Alternatives Trade Associ ation

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 304.

GREG CONLEY, President

Anmeri can Vapi ng Associ ation

Hoboken, New Jersey

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 304.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:19: 30 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Committee neeting to order at 3:19 p.m Representatives O son

Kito, Josephson, Hughes, LeDoux, and Tilton were present at the
call to order. Representative Colver arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

HB 304- ELECTRNC TAX RETURNS; TOBACCO & E-ClI GS TAX

3:20: 05 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 304, "An Act requiring the electronic subm ssion
of a tax return or report wth the Departnent of Revenue;
relating to the taxes on cigarettes and tobacco products; taxing
el ectronic snoking products; adding a definition of 'electronic
snoki ng product'; and providing for an effective date."

3:20: 35 PM

MARGE STONEKI NG, Executive Director, Anerican Lung Association
in Alaska, provided information from a public health perspective
on the public health inpact of increased taxes. Ms. Stoneking
said an increase of the tobacco tax by government is justified
by the offset of cost incurred by tobacco to society. According
to the Al aska Tobacco Prevention and Control Program Division
of Public Health, Departnent of Health and Social Services, $20
in snmoking direct nedical costs are incurred by each pack of
cigarettes, which is currently taxed at $2 per pack. In
addition, in ternms of public health, higher taxes reduce tobacco

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- February 22, 2016



use in the nost price-sensitive segnent of the popul ation. For
every 10 percent increase in the price of tobacco products, use
by youth is reduced in the anpbunt of 6 percent or 7 percent.
Furthernore, |owincome users are price-sensitive.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether he was saying that one of
the benefits of this is that it's so regressive, and it targets
| owi nconme peopl e.

M5. STONEKI NG said no. She explained that price-sensitive nmeans
that a tobacco tax affects a certain population "in a good way
in terms of tobacco consunption, so they are nore likely to cut
down their tobacco use and nore likely, eventually, to quit."”
She continued to say that the inpact of reduced tobacco use is
hi ghest on youth, and next highest on | ow i ncone.

CHAIR OLSON questioned whether M. Stoneking's statenent
contradicts previous testinmony heard by the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said the foregoing also contradicts
statenents by the bill sponsor which indicated that there would
not be a neasurable effect on the nunber of people who snoke.

M5. STONEKI NG recall ed that there have been two tobacco tax |aws
i npl emented in Al aska. In 1997, Al aska tobacco taxes were the
hi ghest in the nation, and in 2004, tobacco consunption fell
below the national average following each of the price

I ncr eases. As a direct effect of raising tobacco taxes in
general, adults cut down tobacco use and kids typically don't
begi n snoki ng. Ms. Stoneking stated there is a fornmula to

estimate Medicaid savings associated wth a decline in tobacco
use, and she offered to provide further information in this
regard.

3:25:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked for <clarification on the direct
medi cal costs associated with tobacco use.

M5. STONEKI NG expl ained that the direct nmedical cost of tobacco
use in Alaska is $370 million per year, which equates to $20 per
pack sol d. She turned to e-cigarettes, stating that electronic
ni cotine delivery systens are new and | ack | ong-term data on how

tax increases affect consunption. However, it appears that
their use "wll follow suit wth tobacco reductions as well."
In Al aska, 4 percent of adults use e-cigarettes, and 85 percent
of their wuse is in addition to traditional cigarettes. The

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- February 22, 2016



first year of data on e-cigarettes indicates that in Al aska, 18
percent of youth are using e-cigarettes, and nationally there
has been a nine-fold increase.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked of the 85 percent using e-
cigarettes, how many are in the process of trying to quit
snoki ng.

M5. STONEKI NG responded that a report indicated 72 percent of
dual wusers were using e-cigarettes either as a way to reduce
use, or to wuse when snoking is not allowed [report not
provi ded] .

MS. STONEKI NG continued, noting that nationally, e-cigarette use
anong youth increased nine-fold between 2011 and 2014. She
characterized this as an epidemc of youth using a conpletely
unregul ated product. There are clains by e-cigarette purveyors
that e-cigarettes are used for cessation purposes, although they
are not approved as cessation devices by the U S. Food and Drug

Adm ni stration (FDA). Ms. Stoneking noted that no independent
e-cigarette conmpany has filed with FDA to be considered as a
cessation product. In addition to w despread use by youth,

youth transition to traditional cigarettes, as do adults who
have never snoked, or who have quit traditional cigarettes. She
concluded that e-cigarettes should be taxed as other tobacco
product s.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked how the <cost of e-cigarettes
conpares with the cost of traditional cigarettes, including tax.

3:31: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON has heard that a 25-cigarette pack
costs about $11, and the tax is an additional $1.20.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES questi oned whether the tax on e-cigarettes
was hi gher.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether there is definitive proof
that e-cigarettes are dangerous, and if so, for the source of
sai d proof.

M5. STONEKI NG acknow edged that |ong-term health consequences
will be wunknown for decades; however, it is known that e-
cigarettes are a tobacco-derived product, marketed and used in a
simlar manner to tobacco products, and thus should be taxed in
t he sane way.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- February 22, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX comrented that sonme taxes are regressive,
such as a general sales tax, although it does affect everyone.
However, she expressed her concern about testinony in support of
a tax that "actually targets poorer people because they're the
people who are going to be the nobst price-sensitive on sone
t hings. "

MS. STONEKI NG responded that the | owinconme popul ation carries a
cost to the Medicaid program and snokes at a higher rate; she
pointed out that the state is "looking for cost savings in that
area."

CHAIR OLSON recalled that the director of the tax division said
the tax is regressive geographically and as pertains to incone.

3:35: 51 PM

M5. STONEKI NG stated that the difference between the tobacco tax
and other taxes is that the tobacco tax provides a public health
and econom c benefit to the state and to society.

REPRESENTATI VE TILTON inquired as to the percentage of kids who
snoke traditional cigarettes.

M5. STONEKING said 11 percent in Alaska, which is a reduction
from over 30 percent, and she attributed the reduction to the
t obacco tax increase in 1997.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES surmised that mnors are not restricted
fromusing e-cigarettes in Al aska.

M5. STONEKING stated that prior |legislation decreed that any
product containing nicotine is legal only for those 19 years of
age and above; however, retailers who sell e-cigarettes and [e-
liquids] are not required to hold a tobacco |icense endorsenent,
which is the basis for the underage sal es enforcenent program
and therefore are not obligated to check ages.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked whether the use of e-cigarettes by
m nors would decline if there is legislation to prohibit mnors
fromusing include e-cigarettes.

M5. STONEKI NG advi sed that a conbination of several strategies

is needed to reduce tobacco wuse, including underage sales
enforcenment, taxes, a conprehensive program and snoke-free
pl aces. In further response to Representative Hughes, she said

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- February 22, 2016



she will research the question of how nuch prohibiting mnors
fromlegal use would affect total use by m nors.

3:38:35 PM

ALEX MCDONALD, Omer, Ilce Fog Vapor, Inc., and a nenber of the
Snoke- Fr ee Al ternatives Tr ade Associ ati on, i nf ornmed t he
conm ttee that he has been vaping for three years and opened his
shop in July, 2014. Finding an alternative to conbustible

tobacco allowed himto quit after nineteen years of traditiona

t obacco use. The proposed tax on e-liquid and devices differs
from a tax on tobacco in that all of the items are avail able
online. Previous testinony has indicated that tobacco snuggling
is becomng a problemin states with high tax rates on tobacco
products. M. MDonal d warned that consuners will shop online

skirting taxes and [age] checks. He stated that every shop that
is a nenber of the Snoke-Free Alternatives Trade Association
agrees that consunmers nust be over 19 years of age. Shops wll

not be able to conpete with online pricing and wll close,
puni shing those who have found an alternative to conbustible
t obacco products. He cited a report from England that stop-
snoki ng services should support snokers who switch to vapor
products [report not provided]. M. MDonald stated that the
bill would harm smal| busi nesses and force Alaskans to return to

conbusti bl e tobacco products, or shop out of state.
REPRESENTATI VE TI LTON asked how many shops are open in Al aska.

MR. MCDONALD said approximately 25, and there are also juice
manufacturers that nmake e-liquid, which is a substance of
vegetabl e glycerin, propylene glycol, nicotine, and flavoring.
In further response to Representative Tilton, he estimated 100
persons are enployed in e-cigarette retail sales.

MR. MCDONALD continued, noting shops check identification and
instruct consuners on the safe use of devices. The shops al so
provide a sense of conmmnity for those switching from
traditional tobacco use to vaping. He again referenced a report
from England that said nost vaporizer use is by fornmer or
current tobacco wusers, which is his experience also. M.
McDonald pointed out that wunlike online stores, e-cigarette
shops seek to ensure that mnors do not have access to devices,
and he expressed his support of proposed legislation that wll
[imt access by mnors. |In response to Chair O son, he said the
online market is supported by mlitary nmenbers, and with the
tax, the local shops could not conpete.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- February 22, 2016



3:45:14 PM

GREGORY CONLEY, President, Anerican Vaping Association (AVA),
said he has been a | eading voice for vapor products since August
2010, after he quit traditional snmoking with e-cigarettes, and
|ater formed ACA to advocate for fair and sensible policies
toward vapor products. He stated his opposition to HB 304 and
asked for the commttee's consideration of the follow ng: t he
debat e about vapor products is not about good or evil, as was
the previous debate of "big tobacco"” versus public health; there
are experts on both sides of this public health question, for
exanple, a report from Public Health England said vapors help
people quit and vapors are at |east 95 percent |ess hazardous
than snoking; nicotine does not kill, but snoke, carbon
nonoxi de, and tar do kill. M. Conley encouraged skepticism and
urged for legislators to look at the evidence; in fact, big
tobacco and cigarette conpanies did not <create the vapor
industry and 65 percent of the US. nmarket is controlled by
smal | - and nediumsized businesses, which will be inpacted by
t he proposed tax. Regardi ng adult usage, he said the Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) released a survey that
found 22 percent of snokers who quit in the past year were using
e-cigarettes, and snokers who quit potentially save billions of
dollars in Medicaid expenses [survey not provided]. He urged
the conmttee to closely review data on vapor use by youth,
because as youth experinmentation with vaping rose, there was a
dramatic decline in teen snoking, which belies evidence that
vaping is a gateway to traditional tobacco use. Furt hernore

nati onwi de, only 2 percent of Anerican youth reported using e-
cigarettes over twenty days per nonth. He concluded that a 100
percent tax is not justified, and agreed that the tax wll
negatively affect |owincome users because vaping will be nore
expensi ve. Also, M. Conley cautioned that the tax wll
negatively affect future marijuana retail sales.

3:51: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KI TO asked M. Conl ey whether he quit snoking and
vapi ng.

MR. CONLEY said he vapes. He expressed his belief that there
are benefits fromnicotine use.

REPRESENTATI VE KITO inquired as to the source of nicotine used
i n vapi ng products.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- February 22, 2016



MR. CONLEY said products that contain nicotine are derived from
t obacco or made synthetically in a | ab.

REPRESENTATI VE KI TO observed that tobacco conpanies will benefit
from vaping if they are supplying nicotine, and asked whether
t obacco conpanies are al so produci ng synthetic nicotine.

MR. CONLEY said big tobacco is not publicly running operations
that take nicotine from tobacco plants, but farnmers in Sweden,
Switzerland, and perhaps India are benefitting from the vapor
industry right now, and are also the sources for nicotine used
in nicotine patches and gum

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked whether the tax would cause e-
cigarette consumers to return to traditional cigarettes because
of the cost.

MR. CONLEY opined that snokers who have already sw tched from
traditional cigarettes would buy products online, use the black
mar ket, or make their own; however, others would not strive to
quit and will return to traditional cigarettes. The bi ggest
threat is to a snmoker who would not pay a high price to begin
the process of quitting.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked for the price of one e-cigarette
conpared to the price of one traditional cigarette if the bil
passes.

3:56:33 PM
MR. CONLEY advised that convenience stores sell e-cigarettes
with a refill cartridge for $7 to $8, which would be equival ent

to three-quarters of a pack of traditional ci garettes.
Therefore, if the tax doubles the cost, e-cigarettes would be
nore expensive. In further response to Representative Hughes,
he said any change in snoking rates would affect the cost of
Medi cai d over tine.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES surm sed that if the bill passes, Mdicaid
costs would go up because |owincone snokers wll return to
traditional cigarettes.

MR. CONLEY opined that Alaska would pay higher Medicaid costs
than a state that allows adults to "sw tch uni npeded. "

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked what percentage of e-liquids do not
contain nicotine.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- February 22, 2016



MR. CONLEY referred to a survey that found in the United Ki ngdom
(U.K) 15 percent of adult vapor product users were using zero-
nicotine, and he estimated from his own experience that the
percentage in the US is in a simlar range [survey not
provi ded] . He stated his strong opposition to taxing products
that do not contain nicotine.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked for information on regulation and
the excise tax rate on e-cigarettes in other states.

MR. CONLEY said the first state to tax vapor products was

M nnesota in 2010. M nnesota redefined tobacco products to
i nclude anything that contains nicotine, but the tax does not
i ncl ude devi ces. In-state manufacturers pay a 95 percent tax

when the nicotine cones into the state, and the manufacturers
supply nearly the entire vapor market. North Carolina and

Loui siana assess a tax of $0.05 per mlliliter of nicotine-
containing liquid, and Kansas has delayed its proposed tax of
$0. 20. In further response to Representative Josephson, he
explained that four states inpact the industry; in addition,
Washi ngton, DC passed a tax of approxinmately 68 percent of
whol esale on all vapor products, including devices, which

resulted in the closure of two out of five vape shops.

CHAIR OLSON recalled testinony from the tax division that if a
vaping device is packaged without a product, it would not be
taxed, however, if the device and product are packaged together
the tax would apply.

MR. CONLEY pointed out that the bill is vague in that batteries
are not to be taxed, thus a device without a battery would
garner a 100 percent tax.

CHAIR OLSON wi Il get clarification fromtax division.

[ HB 304 was hel d over.]

4:04: 26 PM

ADJ OQURNNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
4:04 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- February 22, 2016



